
WOODBURY COUNTY 
BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 

Monday, June 3, 2024 at 6:00 PM 
The Woodbury County Board of Adjustment will hold a public meeting on Monday, June 3, 2024 at 6:00 PM in 
the Board of Supervisors’ meeting room in the Basement of the Woodbury County Courthouse, 620 Douglas 
Street, Sioux City, IA.  Please use the 7th St. entrance.  Public access to the conversation of the meeting will also 
be made available during the meeting by telephone. Persons wanting to participate in the public meeting may 
attend in person or call: (712) 454-1133 and enter the Conference ID: 742 346 123# during the meeting to listen 
or comment.  It is recommended to attend in person as there is the possibility for technical difficulties with phone 
and computer systems. 

AGENDA

1 CALL TO ORDER 

2 ROLL CALL 

3 PUBLIC COMMENT ON MATTERS NOT ON THE AGENDA 

4 APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS MEETING MINUTES: 5/6/24 

5 ITEM(S) OF ACTION / BUSINESS 

» ACTION ITEM: PUBLIC HEARING - CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT APPLICATION: ASPHALT 
MIXING (TEMPORARY) SITE TO SUPPORT THE HIGHWAY 20 RESURFACING PROJECT 
ON PARCEL #894431100010 and PARCEL #894431100011 
Consideration of a Conditional Use Permit application by Knife River Midwest LLC (Applicant) and Robert A. Davis (Property 
Owner) for an asphalt mixing (temporary) site, to support the Highway 20 resurfacing project, on Parcel #894431100010 and 
Parcel #894431100011.  The proposed location is about one-half mile west of Moville on the north side of Highway 20.  Both 
parcels are located in the Agricultural Preservation (AP) Zoning District.  Portions of the property are located within the Special 
Flood Hazard Area.  Applicant(s)/Owner(s): Knife River LLC, 2220 Hawkeye Drive, Sioux City, IA 51105; Robert A. Davis, 1520 
Grundy Ave., Moville, IA 51039.  Property locations: Parcel #894431100010, T89N R44W (Arlington Township), Section 31, SE 
1/4 of the NW 1/4 and Parcel #894431100011, T89N R44W (Arlington Township), Section 31, SE 1/4 of the NW 1/4.  Location 
Address: 1541 Grundy Ave., Moville, IA 51039. 

6 PUBLIC COMMENT ON MATTERS NOT ON THE AGENDA 

7 STAFF UPDATE 

8 BOARD MEMBER COMMENT OR INQUIRY 

9 ADJOURN 

1



PACKET CONTENTS 

Previous Mee�ng Minutes

ACTION ITEM: PUBLIC HEARING - CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT 
APPLICATION: ASPHALT MIXING (TEMPORARY) SITE TO SUPPORT THE 
HIGHWAY 20 RESURFACING PROJECT ON PARCEL #894431100010 and 
PARCEL #894431100011 
Consideration of a Conditional Use Permit application by Knife River Midwest LLC (Applicant) and 
Robert A. Davis (Property Owner) for an asphalt mixing (temporary) site, to support the Highway 20 
resurfacing project, on Parcel #894431100010 and Parcel #894431100011.  The proposed location is 
about one-half mile west of Moville on the north side of Highway 20.  Both parcels are located in the 
Agricultural Preservation (AP) Zoning District.  Portions of the property are located within the Special 
Flood Hazard Area.  Applicant(s)/Owner(s): Knife River LLC, 2220 Hawkeye Drive, Sioux City, IA 
51105; Robert A. Davis, 1520 Grundy Ave., Moville, IA 51039.  Property locations: Parcel 
#894431100010, T89N R44W (Arlington Township), Section 31, SE 1/4 of the NW 1/4 and Parcel 
#894431100011, T89N R44W (Arlington Township), Section 31, SE 1/4 of the NW 1/4.  Location 
Address: 1541 Grundy Ave., Moville, IA 51039.

2

3

85



1 

Minutes - Woodbury County Board of Adjustment – May 6, 2024 

The Board of Adjustment meeting convened on the 6th of May 2024 at 6:01 PM in the Board of Supervisors’ 
meeting room in the Basement of the Woodbury County Courthouse.  The meeting was also made available for 
public access via teleconference.   

Meeting Audio: 
For specific content of this meeting, refer to the recorded video on the Woodbury County Board of Adjustment 
“Committee Page” on the Woodbury County website: 

- County Website Link: 
o https://www.woodburycountyiowa.gov/committees/board_of_adjustment/ 

- YouTube Direct Link: 
o  https://youtu.be/01JYvG1nKyQ?si=5-yNfd8P0rNhKsAz 

BA Members Present : Daniel Hair, Doyle Turner, Pam Clark, Tom Thiesen, Ashley Christensen 
County Staff Present:   Dan Priestley, Dawn Norton 
Public Present: Dan Bittinger, Glenna Tevis, Cheryl Tevis, Lynne Boulden, Dennis 

Boulden, Deborah Sulsberger, Kim Sulsberger, Tyler Sulsberger, Zach 
Allen, Nathan Silknitter, Patty Silknitter, Jesse Beem, Robin Beem, Randy 
Hunt, Larry Hunt, Dennis Gallagher, Micheal Gallagher, Anita Tevis, Carla 
Tevis, Justin Sprague, Abe Sandquist, John Schechinger, Zachary 
Greder, Tim Ericksen 

Call to Order 
Chair Daniel Hair formally called the meeting to order at 6:01 PM. 

Public Comment on Matters Not on the Agenda 
None 

Approval of Minutes 
The March 4, 2024 minutes were approved with the following additions/corrections: Election of Chair and Vice 
Chair for 2024.  Daniel Hair as Chair, Pam Clark as Vice-Chair.  Motion by Hair to approve with corrections; Second 
by Clark. Motion passed 5-0. 

Action Item: Public hearing – Consideration of a Conditional Use Permit Application: Proposed Waste 
Composting Site on Parcel #864505400001 and Parcel #864505400002: 
Hair opened the Public Hearing.  Hair, Clark and Thiesen stated they visited the proposed site.   

Priestley stated additional comments were received after the printing of the agenda and backup materials.  
Priestley requested that the comments be received into record (Received Materials available in the Appendix): 

 Comments/Material from Cheryl Tevis received May 2, 2024.  Christensen motioned to receive.  Second by Turner.  Carried 5-0.   
 Comments/Material from Glenna Tevis received May 2, 2024.  Clark motioned to receive.  Second by Turner.  Carried 5-0.   
 Comments/Material from Steven Burns received May 2, 2024.  Clark motioned to receive.  Second by Turner.  Carried 5-0.   
 Comments/Material from Kim Sulsberger received May 2, 2024.  Hair motioned to receive.  Second by Christensen.  Carried 5-0.   
 Comments/Material from Abe Sandquist received May 3, 2024.  Hair motioned to receive.  Second by Christensen.  Carried 5-0.   

Priestley read staff report into record.  Applicant Abe Sandquist and Timothy A. Ericksen (Property Owner) filed a 
Conditional Use Permit application by Natural Fertilizer Products, Inc. for a waste composting site on Parcel 
#864505400001 and Parcel #864505400002. The proposed location is about 3.7 miles north of Hornick, IA and 
about 6.7 miles northeast of Sloan, IA. Both parcels are located in the Agricultural Preservation (AP) Zoning 
District. Applicant(s)/Owner(s): Natural Fertilizer Products, Inc. (Applicant - Abe Sandquist), 414 Walker St., 
Woodbine, Iowa 51579; Timothy A. Ericksen (Owner), 2369 Buchanan Ave., Sergeant Bluff, IA 51054. Property 
locations: Parcel #864505400001, T86N R45W (Willow Township), Section 5, NW 1/4 of the SE 1/4 and Parcel 
#864505400002, T86N R45W (Willow Township), Section 5, NE 1/4 of the SE 1/4. Property Address: 2553 Old 
Hwy 141, Hornick, IA 51026.  The Zoning Commission members were presented with the application for review at 
their March 22 meeting.  Three Commissioners were present, they voted 3-0.  Their recommendation was to deny 

3



2

the application and forward the application to the Board of Adjustment.  Priestley stated criteria in the Zoning 
Ordinance for Conditional Use Permit approval is based on standards and considerations to see how the 
application would fit within the ordinance.  Staff recommended a series of conditions, ultimately the Zoning 
Commission recommended denial.  The applicant was encouraged to describe in more detail their request when 
presenting it to the Board of Adjustment. 

Abe Sandquist approached the Board with material to be accepted into the record.  Turner motioned to receive.  
Second by Clark.  Carried 5-0 (Received Materials available in the Appendix). 

Mr. Sandquist introduced himself and gave a presentation of the proposed waste composting site.  He is an 
agronomist, manure broker, and conservationist.  He is vice-chair of the Composting Council for the State of Iowa.  
His project recycles waste by-products into organic material to be used as fertilizer.  He has a degree in agronomy, 
worked as a soil conservationist at a large-scale animal feeding operation and helped develop a comprehensive 
nutrient management plan.  He decided to develop a business of brokering manure when a farmer had too much 
phosphate and couldn’t apply it to his fields.  He suggested the farmer sell it to his neighbor.  From that idea he 
started thinking of other waste streams that were not being utilized, such as food waste and waste by-products from 
processing plants.  Instead of hauling the material to a landfill where it creates methane gas which causes air 
quality issues, he suggests organically composting to be reused.  He was contacted by Reuter’s magazine in 2022 
and was asked about marketing manure and the process.  There is a concern about nutrient supply chain because 
of the Russian Ukraine war, and a possible shortage of fertilizer for growing crops because the US imports, most 
from Ukraine.  The Fertilizer Expansion Program came out for anyone with a business plan to create renewable 
sustainable fertilizer locally.  He stated they met all the requirements and was accepted.  The next steps are to find 
suitable land and met all the environmental regulations withing state, federal and county guidelines.  He chose this 
location because it would be close to where a lot of the end product would be used.  It would be taking land out of 
crop production, but he feels the project produces an ag related end product that will be used on farmland, with 
better productivity by using renewable recycled organic matter.  Mr. Sandquist stated Iowa DNR has selected him 
as 1 of 15 members to rewrite a section in Iowa Code.  IDNR wants to see compost facilities grow to keep materials 
out of landfills.  Mr. Sandquist showed pictures of what the facility would look like, and a bag of finished product.  
He stated the facility would be kept neat and clean to avoid product loss and also to minimize smell.  Correct 
management is very important.  The goal in processing is to get a 25 to 1 carbon nitrogen ratio and about 40-60% 
moisture.  After about a week, the pile temperature reaches about 140 degrees, at that temp the bacteria is being 
killed off by the different pathogens.  The temperature also kills off the smell.  DNR regulates that raw material 
needs to be in a pile within 24 hours, if regulations are not met, a permit won’t be issued or renewed.   

Christensen asked if there were any other facilities in Iowa.  Sandquist stated it’s a new concept and there are 2 in 
Iowa, some starting in Nebraska, Minnesota, North Carolina, and they are required in California.   

Thiesen asked about product analysis, is it analyzed when received or before it’s accepted.  Sandquist stated every 
load has a nutrient analysis done.  Thiesen asked about Chapter 200 DNR manure license and commercial 
fertilizer license, Sandquist answered the DNR monitors the sales and production site and they would get a 
commercial fertilizer license.  Thiesen asked about problems with combustion.  Sandquist stated they haven’t 
composted food waste, but animal manures haven’t been a problem, they wet down the product because the 
biology needs moisture for the composting process.  Christensen asked if a lab is on site to test samples, 
Sandquist stated the source where the material comes from would do analysis and they would physically take a 
bag to a lab to have it analyzed.  Theisen asked what the PH levels usually are, Sandquist stated it’s usually neutral 
or 7 PH, they can add other mixtures to adjust the PH and create custom orders.  To start they will put it in a big 
feed mixer or side dump and mix it like cattle feed.  The material would be laid out in wind rows, then large compost 
turners would go over it to stir.  Hair asked what type of by-product material they would be receiving, and how long 
he thinks the business would last.  Sandquist stated the product would come from sources such as Tyson, Gelita, 
and AGP.  DNR has to be notified when any new ingredients are brought in.  Sanquist expects this to be a long-
term venture.  If it won’t work at this site, he will continue to look for a site.  The grant project is like a USDA grant, 
they look at the business plan.  If you receive the grant you use the set amount received.  Sanquist expects the 
grant portion to cover about 40% of the cost.  Materials brought in would be bone meal, products with nitrogen 
content phosphates, calcium.  DAFF material may be another material used.  Turner asked about the risk of Avian 
flu and how birds would be kept from the piles.  Sanquist said the piles would be hot and birds wouldn’t be likely to 
get into them.  Also, Sandquist stated composting is the only process to truly kill Avian flu, and the facilities that had 
Avian flu used composting to dispose of the birds.  Sandquist said they won’t take birds. Only beef, pork, and 
possibly chicken.  No chicken manure would be accepted because it would get to hot.   Also, products brought in 

4



3

would already have gone through a heated and cooked process.  Turner asked about food waste attracting 
unwanted animals, Sandquist said the piles would be too hot for them, and raw ingredients should be in a pile 
within 24 hours. Hair asked how long by-products would sit at a processor site before they would be picked up, 
Sandquist said the processors don’t want it sitting around so they would be received within 24 hours.  Hair asked 
about truck traffic, Sandquist stated it could start out as 6-10 trucks a day, although some days may be more like 
25-30 trucks of product going out a day, probably on side dump trailers.  Hours of operation would be 6:00 am – 3 
pm.  They would try to get piles turned around in 24 hours.  The process on average for the entire process would 
be around 60 to 90 days.  Sandquist was asked about concerns with waste animal material being next to a feed lot.  
He answered that the material has already been heated and cooked so it’s not raw .  Thiesen asked if they would 
do the custom application themselves, Sandquist yes.  They have 30,000 acres of land they have signed up on 
their permit on the grant application, not in this area but would haul it out to other locations.  The product would be 
loaded and delivered to the truck in the field.  Sandquist stated he would only do food waste if, for example, Hy-Vee 
would call with a truckload of bad bananas they could mix them in.   

Mr. Sandquist asked Justin Sprague from Pro Ag Engineering to speak.  Mr. Sandquist asked him to review his site 
and advise on site feasibility and DNR requirements.  DNR has three levels of composting facilities allowed in Iowa.  
DNR has specific setback requirements of 500 ft from composting facility to a residence, no composting is allowed 
in a designated wetland, separation to a public well is 100 ft and to a private well 50 ft to the property line and 100 ft 
from a water source.  DNR also specifies water management, both surface and groundwater.  There has to be 
surfacing for the compost facility that’s impermeable so that 1*10us 7cm per second so its not going to soak 
through the surface and get into the groundwater but has to be all weather accessible at the same time.  Best 
practices are addressed to minimize odor, dust, noise, litter, and varmints.   Also, a DNR requirement is all feed 
stock coming into the property has to be identified, along with their frequency and volume.  If the example of Hy-
Vee bananas came up as a possible material, he could not receive them if they weren’t already listed as a material 
to be used.  The management plan would need to include an offtake plan to be sure he gets rid of all the feed 
stock; any finished feed stock can not remain on the site longer than 18 months or he would no longer be in 
compliance.   There are annual reporting requirements, also financial reporting requirements.  A closure report 
would need to be filed with DNR no less than two months before closing the facility.  The permit is good for three 
years; a renewal would need to be filed at least 90 days prior to expiration.  Mr. Sprague explained DAFF as 
dissolved air flotation – DAFF is a way to remove proteins, fats and other fibers that can’t be mechanically removed 
from wastewater any other way, so they put dissolved air up trough the water to help separate out the solid 
products.  Currently most sludge is taken to landfills, with the exception of sludge applied to ag ground.  If it is 
applied at two dry tons per acre a permit is not required.  Sludge from packing plants in Iowa is currently sent out 
and applied to land under that exemption.  Mr. Sandquist asked Sprague to review his sites for feasibility and 
advise on all permit limitations.  It is his opinion that it meets all DNR requirements for sighting and the preliminary 
business plan is the skeleton that can be developed into his permit application.  Turner asked when the soil is made 
impermeable, it is not concrete, so the soil is made impermeable.  Sprague stated the requirement is an 
impermeable surface which could include concrete, asphalt, compacted granular fill or compacted soil.  Most 
commonly it’s compacted clay.  A geotechnical review of the site would include samples from the area where 
composting surface and runoff containment would be, to make sure the material would meet the requirements. 
They would also look at groundwater and make sure there is separation distance as well as shallow lime rock sand 
pockets and anything else that doesn’t show up on the general map review.  Turner asked about bringing in clay 
before the samples are done since it would not be known what material would be permeable.  The Loess Hills soils 
don’t get compacted and meet that requirement.  The parent material underneath the topsoil surfaces the map 
review says that the lower strata of soils does have clay material, which is a two foot of compacted clay would meet 
that impermeable surface but that isn’t enough, a site-specific evaluation would need to be done, which would get 
DNR review.   

Turner asked what soil type it is?  Sprague stated he didn’t bring that information with him but could provide it.   

Hair said he saw in the application where Sandquist has plans to build a 100 ft shed in one stage and possibly 
another 200 ft shed.  Asked if they would have roofs to over sheds and wondering where stormwater run-off would 
go.  Sprague stated as far as stormwater, there would be added impermeable surface on the pad and the 
wastewater would be designed to go into a different holding basin.   

Hair about asked stormwater run-off from structures where the water would go; Sprague said it would be managed 
separately from the water off the composting facility, as a design requirement from the DNR.   There are DNR 
requirements for pre-construction so no sediment or anything leaves the site, and post construction requirements.  

5



4

DNR has requirements for storm water control are split up into different design storms, short intense storm and the 
longer you know the steady rainstorm, and steady rainstorm all will be managed without changing the direction of 
any current runoff.  Stormwater will be captured and held in a runoff containment basin so the total volume of water 
leaving the site would be less, there may be a clean stormwater pond.  There is a variety of different controls in a 
retention cell infiltration area that will meet DNR post construction stormwater plan so a high-volume flow off the 
site will be controlled release of clean water.  What is looked at in the preliminary site design layout is setbacks and 
making sure all requirements are met.  A final design would include all clean water design elements. 

The public was invited to address the board with comments. 

Glenna Tevis -  2539 Old Hwy 141 – Landowner adjoining the site to the north.  Her driveway is about ½ mile from 
the proposed driveway for the site.  She opposes the facility.  The land has been owned and farmed by generations 
of her late husband’s family.  Feels that if the Conditional Use Permit is granted it will have adverse effects on the 
health, safety, and welfare of the surrounding community by increased noise, smell, possibly air and water 
contamination, traffic safety, and the Scenic Byway.  Ms. Tevis presented a petition to present to the Board.  Hair 
motioned to receive.  Second by Turner.  Carried 5-0 (Received Materials available in the Appendix). 

Jesse Beem – 2829 Grundy Ave.- Landowner approximately 500 ft adjacent to proposed site.  Presented maps to 
be received into record.  Motion by Hair.  Second by Turner.  Carried 5-0 (Received Materials available in the 
Appendix).  Not opposed to the business, but the location of the site.  Concerns with location of Loess Hills, 
drinking wells, air quality and odor, chemical emissions, and property values.  Also listed concerns with excessive 
truck traffic, run-off, and noise quality.  Asked Board members  about their commitment to preservation of the Loess 
Hills and the Owego Wetland area. Happy some members visited the proposed site.  Suggested this use would be 
better in an Industrial area.  Mentioned there are some sites available by AGP. 

Cheryl Tevis – 187 H Ave, Pilot Mound – Grew up in this area.  Objects to the CUP approval as it is not an 
appropriate site.  Concerns with runoff washing down Loess Hills soil, pollution, traffic safety and damage to roads 
from truck traffic.  Feels product would be outsourced to other areas, environmental and health repercussions of the 
project.  Concerns about oversight of companies like Tyson and Gelita and their organic waste stream.  Organic 
waste composting is experimental and work in progress, doesn’t feel farmers would want to pay more for it than 
commercial fertilizer.  Concerns with material being left on site if operation closes; damage to Loess Hills, soil being 
torn down.  Worried about people traveling along roadways, and wildlife being affected.  Questions ethics and 
character because of lack of communication with landowners.   

Nathan Silknitter – 2835 Grundy Ave – landowner on opposite side of proposed site, lived there 10 years.  Has 
come to understand Loess Hills is ‘scared land’, rare and protected.  Concerned with truck traffic noise, smell 
during the processing, turn around time for by-products.  Operation attracting varmints and predators, concerns 
with livestock.  Not opposed to the business, just not in this area, suggests another location by Gelita.  The road 
has been reinforced to accommodate heavy trucks and its close to the source of material to be processed, which is 
industrial waste. 

Kim Sulsberger – 2853 Grundy Ave – landowner approximately 180 ft to the east property line, or 480-680 ft from 
the proposed facility.  Concerned about odor, their animals, traffic, and bus route safety.  Has concerns about the 
health and well-being of the community.  Other concerns are air quality and runoff from site downhill to her property 
affecting well water quality.  The Zoning Commission meeting mentioned at their April 22 meeting that if so many 
conditions need to be added, maybe this isn’t the right site.   

Michael Gallager – 2941 Moville Blacktop – thanked Board for taking questions.  Feels Mr. Sandquist gave did a 
good job giving reasons why this facility might be beneficial, but he has concerns it is not the right location.  This 
CUP would set a standard and an emerging industry like this would be good for the County, Board needs to be 
aware of what standard they are setting. 

Hair motioned to close public hearing.  Second by Thiesen.  Carried 5-0. 
Hair stated due the complexity of this application, and with any CUP application, the Board of Adjustment has up to 
35 days to render a decision in case a decision is not made at the meeting.  Public asked how and where they will 
be informed of a decision.  Priestley explained the decision would have to be made at another public meeting, the 
Board of Adjustment meets monthly, next meeting is scheduled for June 3, so within that time frame it could be 
done, or a special meeting.  Public asked if it would be posted in the Grapevine.  Priestley stated it would be an 

6



5

agenda item and would be posted within 24 hours at central location in the Courthouse.  The Board could make a 
decision at this meeting or a week from now, but it would be officially posted in the Courthouse and on the 
department website as an agenda item in the packet material.   

Turner thanked both sides of the issue for their comments and being fair-minded.  He feels Mr. Sandquist was 
honest enough to say some things that didn’t really help his case.  Turner stated people aren’t against this per se, 
just this isn’t the right place to put it.  He agrees that the Loess Hills soil can be tricky to play with.  He recalled a 
dairy proposal in the Loess Hills, they assumed clay was 40 ft below the surface, well test were 32 ft and the State 
told them they would have to go to 40 ft and actually found there was clay down there.  The dairy pulled the 
application because they would not be able to build a lagoon to hold water in the way they wanted.  He understands 
the neighbor’s concerns because of the issues with the soil.  He has no problem with composting, the end product 
is very usable, and smell isn’t really a problem with it’s done right but has an issue with it being close to a feed lot.  
The Sulsberger cattle yard is well run, but putting a facility like this next to a cattle yard is a huge environmental risk 
with possible pathogens crossing species and bringing products from other sources and blending them together.  
He would lean toward no on this CUP. 

Clark agrees with Turner on commending both sides for their preparation and research.  Mr. Sanquist has a 
wonderful idea and futuristic way of looking forward for fertilizer business because it’s a natural product but 
understands the local people’s concern and speaking with Mr. Erikson he has given different ideas on how to use 
the property.  He may use it for farming and use some of the Loess Hills not currently under cultivation.  Her opinion 
is this project is more detrimental to the Loess Hills than taking 20 acres out of production.  From what she has 
heard, most are not against the idea of compost, just don’t want it in their neighborhood.  Mr. Sanquist addressed 
issues of runoff, and odor and the ideas he has come up with look good on paper, but he should explore other 
sites.  He feels this would be a good location because it’s above the floodplain.  He would be open to suggestions 
on other locations.  Clark stated she’s on the fence because a natural compost alternative to expensive fertilizer 
prices today.  She empathizes with those living in the Loess Hills and the increase of traffic.  She can see both 
sides and at this point can’t decide. 

Christensen thinks the arguments and information from both sides was through, but not sure the route she’s 
leaning.  The Zoning Commission’s decision to not recommend it is playing into her consideration.  She asked Mr. 
Sandquist if he would consider if presented with additional option for a site.  Sandquist said he would, but the site 
could not be in a floodplain per DNR.  He is a consultant for DNR and works with large cattle feed lots.  Some are 
taking composting materials on sites that maybe shouldn’t be.  He thanked the Board of their consideration. 
Christensen needs additional information before deciding.  

Hair feels it is a very thorough application and can see a lot of time was put into it.  He has read through Woodbury 
County zoning ordinances and stated there are several requirements that need to be followed for a CUP.  A couple 
of them stand out for instance requirement C on the CUP application.  ‘The proposed use and development will not 
have a substantial or undue adverse effect upon adjacent property, and the character of the neighborhood traffic 
conditions, parking, utilities, facilities, and other factors affecting the public health, safety, and general welfare.’  
And Item D:  ‘The proposed use and development will be located, designed, constructed and operated in such a 
manner that will be compatible with the immediate neighborhood and will not interfere with the orderly use, 
development and improvement of surrounding property.’  Hair noted he has not seen a crowd this big or a petition 
in his tenure on the Board of Adjustment.  A couple points brought up that got his attention is the school bus route, 
and Loess Hills is a Scenic By-way.  He has concerns with the increased amount of truck traffic, heavy loads and 
varying amounts of loads per day.  Hair would recommend denying this permit.   

Thiesen has concerns with the location in the Loess Hills and increased traffic concerns.  He would vote against 
approval. 

Christensen appreciated Hair going through the ordinance which really helped with her decision.  Because of 
concerns with traffic and the welfare of the community, along with the Zoning Commission’s recommendation, she 
would vote to deny. 

Clark restated that she thinks it’s a great project, but it would fit better in an industrial area.   

Turner stated while the location of the project might be ‘out of site and out of mind’, it wouldn’t be for the 
neighboring landowners.  Believes master plan is focused on homes and this use doesn’t fit there.   

7



6

Question from public – Is the vote majority or how does it work.  Hair answered yes, majority vote. 

Theisen motioned to deny CUP application.  Second by Turner.   Hair asked Priestley to clarify if an explanation 
was needed with the denial, Priestley answered yes.  Hair asked Thiesen to incorporate some of the reasons that 
were given for denial and asked for a withdrawal/restatement.  Thiesen withdrew his motion for it to be 
amended/restated.  Motion to deny application because of reasons of the preservation of the Loess Hills and the 
uncertainty of what could happen with the compost piles with the different products that are bring brought in with 
too many unknowns, that the way I feel about it and the traffic part of it.  Hair requested to amend the motion further 
with Thiesen’s concurrence to include the zoning ordinance C and D standards (Section 2.02-9 F(C) & (D)) to 
represent the safety and well-being of those who live in the area and the use of the area, so we have a good 
reason to deny based on increase heavy truck traffic on the scenic byway and school bus route.  Hair checked for 
clarification of the motion and clarified the two criteria C & D (Section 2.02-9 F(C) & (D)), traffic, school bus route 
and the general well-being of the community that lives in the area and the safety.  Turner seconded the motion as 
amended.  Motion carried. 5-0.   

Public Comment on Matters Not on the Agenda 
None 

Staff Update 
Priestley mentioned the Board of Supervisors will have the third and final public hearings on the Comprehensive 
Plan, the Utility Solar Permitting and regulations in the General Industrial district, and Floodplain requirements.  He 
also mentioned the CoZO conference May 22-24 being held in Sioux City.  Zoning Commissioners, Board of 
Adjustment members, Board of Supervisor’s and general public are invited to attend.  Registration deadline is May 
10.   

Board Member Comment or Inquiry 
None 

Motion to adjourn Clark.  Second Christensen.  Carried 5-0.  Meeting adjourned at 7:44 pm 

APPENDX ON SUBSEQUENT PAGES 

8



7

9



8

10



9

11



10

12



11

13



12

14



13

15



14

16



15

17



16

18



17

19



18

20



19

21



20

22



21

23



22

24



23

25



24

26



25

27



26

28



27

29



28

30



29

31



30

32



31

33



32

34



33

35



34

36



35

37



36

38



37

39



38

40



39

41



40

42



41

43



42

44



43

45



44

46



45

Received from Abe Sandquist.  5/6/24 – Board of Adjustment 

47



46

48



47

49



48

50



49

51



50

52



51

53



52

54



53

55



54

56



55

57



56

58



57

59



58

60



59

61



60

62



61

63



62

64



63

65



64

66



65

67



66

68



67

69



68

70



69

71



70

72



71

73



72

74



73

75



74

76



75

Received from Glenna Tevis.  5/6/24 – Board of Adjustment 

77



76

78



77

79



78

80



79

81



80

82



81

83



82

Received from Jesse Beem.  5/6/24 – Board of Adjustment 

84



1

WOODBURY COUNTY PLANNING & ZONING
620 Douglas Street, Sixth Floor, Sioux City, Iowa 51101

712.279.6609 – 712.279.6530 (Fax)
Daniel J. Priestley, MPA – Zoning Coordinator                                        Dawn Norton – Senor Clerk

dpriestley@woodburycountyiowa.gov dnorton@woodburycountyiowa.gov

STAFF AND ZONING COMMISSION REPORT – MAY 30, 2024
ASPHALT MIXING TEMPORARY – CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT PROPOSAL

APPLICATION DETAILS
Applicant(s)/Owner(s): Knife River Midwest LLC / 

Robert A. Davis
Application Type: Conditional Use Permit for 

Asphalt Mixing 
(Temporary)

Zoning District: Agricultural Preservation 
(AP)

Total Acres: 32.32
Current Use: AG – Row Crop and Grain 

Storage
Proposed Use: Asphalt Mixing (Temp)
Pre-application 
Meeting:

April 15, 2024

Application Date: May 1, 2024
Legal Notice Date: May 18, 2024 (BoA)
Neighbor(s) Notice 
Date:

May 16, 2024

Stakeholder(s) Notice 
Date:

May 6, 2024

Zoning Commission 
Review:

May 29, 2024

Board of Adjustment 
Public Hearing:

June 3, 2024

PROPERTY DETAILS
Parcel(s): 894431100010 & 894431100011
Township/Range: T89N R44W (Arlington)
Section: 31
Quarter: SE 1/4 of the NW 1/4 
Zoning District: Agricultural Preservation (AP)
Floodplain: Zone A – (Portions in the 

Floodplain)
Property 
Address:

1541 Grundy Ave., Moville, IA 
51039

CONTENTS
Recommendation 

Specific Description and Project Narrative

Zoning Ordinance Criteria for Board Approval

Application

Public Notification Information 

Supplemental Information

SUMMARY
Knife River Midwest LLC (Applicant) and Robert A. Davis (Property Owner) have filed a conditional use permit application to request to 
use the parcels designated as Parcel #894431100010 and Parcel #894431100011 to operate an asphalt mixing (temporary) site to 
support the Highway 20 resurfacing project.  Both parcels are located in T89N R44W (Arlington Township), in the SE 1/4 of the NW 1/4 
of Section 31, Agricultural Preservation (AP) Zoning District.  The property is located about a half mile west of Moville on the north side 
of Highway 20.  Portions of the property are located within the Special Flood Hazard Area (Zone A).  This proposal has been noticed in 
the Sioux City Journals legal section on May 18, 2024.  The neighbors within 500 feet were duly notified via a May 16, 2024 letter 
about the June 3, 2024 Board of Adjustment public hearing.  Appropriate stakeholders including government agencies, utilities, and 
organizations have been requested to comment.  Under Section 3.03.4: Land Use Table of Allowed Uses in each Zoning District in the 
Zoning Ordinance, “Asphalt mixing (temporary)” is authorized for consideration of a conditional use permit.   The Woodbury County 
Zoning Commission voted 4-0 to recommend approval of this conditional use permit with conditions that all Iowa DNR regulations be 
complied with including applicable floodplain development permits and following all permitting guidelines set forth.  

AERIAL MAP SITE PLAN

85



2 

ZONING COMMISSION AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION
The Woodbury County Zoning Commission voted 4-0 to recommend approval of this conditional use permit with conditions 
that all Iowa DNR regulations be complied with including applicable floodplain development permits and following all 
permitting guidelines set forth.  

Meeting Audio: 
For specific content including the Zoning Commission recommendations, refer to the recorded video on the 
Woodbury County Zoning Commission “Committee Page” on the Woodbury County website: 

- County Website Link: 
o https://www.woodburycountyiowa.gov/committees/zoning_commission/ 

- The meeting audio is available in three (3) parts.  All three links are below: 
o PART 1 - https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=P3ZzHDdZlXM  
o PART 2 - https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=uzj-CscxbYw  
o PART 3 - https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=kUaruN29I14  

Staff recommends approval of this proposal as it is an integral part of completing the Hwy 20 resurfacing project.  The 
suggested motion is to approve the conditional use permit with the condition that the applicant(s)/property owner(s) comply 
with any and all grading and floodplain regulations including that any and all equipment associated with the project not be 
placed in any location designated as the floodway in the Zone A floodplain.  Staff also recommends including a date of 
completion/expiration with the permit. 

86



3 87



4 88



5 89



6

ZONING ORDINANCE CRITERIA FOR BOARD APPROVAL

Conditional Use Permits are determined by a review of the following criteria by the Zoning Commission (ZC) and Board of Adjustment 
(BOA).  The ZC makes a recommendation to the BOA which will decide following a public hearing before the Board.

APPLICANT’S DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPOSED CONDITIONAL USE:

MAP DRAWN TO SCALE, SHOWING THE SUBJECT PROPERTY, ALL STRUCTURES AND OTHER IMPROVEMENTS, WITH THE 
PROPOSED CONDITIONAL USE IDNTIFIED PER STRUCTURE OF IMPROVEMENT, PROVID BY ATTACHMENT

CRITERIA 1: The conditional use requested is authorized as a conditional use in the zoning district within which the property is located 
and that any specific conditions or standards described as part of that authorization have been or will be satisfied (Woodbury County 
Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9).

APPLICANT RESPONSE:

STAFF ANALYSIS:

The requested uses are acceptable for the consideration of a CUP and compatible with Sections 3.03.3 and 3.03.4 of the Zoning 
Ordinance.

90



7

CRITERIA 2: The proposed use and development will be in harmony with the general purpose and intent of this ordinance and the 
goals, objectives and standards of the general plan (Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9).

APPLICANT RESPONSE:

STAFF ANALYSIS:

This temporary project offers support to the completion of the IDOT Hwy 20 project.  

CRITERIA 3: The proposed use and development will not have a substantial or undue adverse effect upon adjacent property, the 
character of the neighborhood, traffic conditions, parking, utility facilities, and other factors affecting the public health, safety and 
general welfare (Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9).

APPLICANT RESPONSE:

STAFF ANALYSIS:

As with the complete Hwy 20 project, this proposal would have a temporary impact on the neighborhood.  The applicant should comply 
with any and all grading and floodplain development regulations including those within Section 5.03 of the Zoning Ordinance.  No 
structures should be placed in any areas designated as the “floodway.”   There does not appear to be any significant impact to parking, or 
other factors impacting public health.  

CRITERIA 4: The proposed use and development will be located, designed, constructed and operated in such a manner that it will be 
compatible with the immediate neighborhood and will not interfere with the orderly use, development and improvement of surrounding 
property (Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9).

APPLICANT RESPONSE:

STAFF ANALYSIS:

The site plan appears to be located, designed, and presented in a manner that will have minimal impact to the area during the time of use.  

CRITERIA 5: Essential public facilities and services will adequately serve the proposed use or development (Woodbury County Zoning 
Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9).

APPLICANT RESPONSE:

91



8

STAFF ANALYSIS:

Staff concurs with the applicant’s response.  

CRITERIA 6: The proposed use or development will not result in unnecessary adverse effects upon any significant natural, scenic or 
historic features of the subject property or adjacent properties (Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9).

APPLICANT RESPONSE:

STAFF ANALYSIS:

The applicant must perform the temporary work in a manner that does not adversely impact the property or the adjacent properties.  

OTHER CONSIDERATION 1: The proposed use or development, at the particular location is necessary or desirable to provide a service 
or facility that is in the public interest or will contribute to the general welfare of the neighborhood or community (Woodbury County 
Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9).

STAFF ANALYSIS:

As noted, this application is being requested to support the Hwy 20 project.  This can be construed as a service in the public interest to 
complete improvements to local transportation.  

OTHER CONSIDRATION 2: All possible efforts, including building and site design, landscaping and screening have been undertaken to 
minimize any adverse effects of the proposed use or development (Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9).

STAFF ANALYSIS:

The applicant shall comply with any and all grading and floodplain development regulations.  Steps should be taken to return the property 
to an acceptable state.  

92



9 

APPLICATION

93



10 94



11 95



12 96



13 97



14 98



15 99



16 100



17 101



18 102



19 103



20 104



21 105



22 106



23 107



24 108



25 109



26 110



27 111



28 112



29 113



30 

LEGAL NOTIFICATION – May 18, 2024, Sioux City Journal
The Woodbury County Zoning Commission meeting is a regular agenda item for review of the application for a recommendation to the Board of 
Adjustment.  The public hearing is to be held before the Board of Adjustment on June 3, 2024 at 6:00 PM.   

114



31

PROPERTY OWNER(S) NOTIFICATION

Total Property Owners within 1000 FT via Certified Abstractor’s 
Listing:

5 

Notification Letter Date: May 16, 2024

Public Hearing Board: Board of Adjustment

Public Hearing Date: June 3, 2024

Phone Inquiries: 0

Written Inquiries: 0

The names of the property owners are listed below.  

When more comments are received after the printing of this packet, they will be provided at the meeting.

PROPERTY OWNER(S) MAILING ADDRESS COMMENTS
Robert A. Davis Trust 1520 Grundy Ave. Moville IA 51039-8022 None
Davy's & Jim's Feed Store Inc. PO Box 505 Moville IA 51039-0505 None
Darlene L. Davis Trust 1529 Grundy Ave. Moville IA 51039 None
Ellis Bruce Johnson & Sharon Irene Johnson 101 23rd St. Sioux City IA 51104 None
Witt Family Trust B c/o Marlene Witt 36 Eastview Apt. 113 Sioux City IA 51106 None

STAKEHOLDER COMMENTS
911 COMMUNICATIONS CENTER: None
ARLINGTON TOWNSHIP: None
FIBERCOMM: None
IOWA DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES (IDNR): SEE EMAIL FROM ASIA AZAM BELOW, 5/20/24
IOWA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION (IDOT): None
LOESS HILLS NATIONAL SCENIC BYWAY: None
LOESS HILLS PROGRAM: None
LONGLINES: None
LUMEN: None
MAGELLAN PIPELINE: None
MIDAMERICAN ENERGY COMPANY (Electrical Division): I have reviewed the following conditional use permit for MEC electric, and we have no conflicts.  The 

Petitioner should be aware that any requested relocation or extension of distribution facilities is 
subject to customer contribution. – Casey Meinen, 5/6/24.

MIDAMERICAN ENERGY COMPANY (Gas Division): No conflicts for MEC “Gas”. – Tyler Ahlquist, 5/6/24.

NATURAL RESOURCES CONSERVATION SERVICES (NRCS): None
NORTHERN NATURAL GAS: None
NORTHWEST IOWA POWER COOPERATIVE (NIPCO): Have reviewed this zoning request. NIPCO has no issues with this request. – Jeff Zettel, 5/8/24.

NUSTAR PIPELINE: None
SIOUXLAND DISTRICT HEALTH DEPARTMENT: None
WIATEL: None
WOODBURY COUNTY ASSESSOR: None
WOODBURY COUNTY CONSERVATION: None
WOODBURY COUNTY EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT: None
WOODBURY COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES: None
WOODBURY COUNTY ENGINEER: I recommend the temporary conditional use of the above captioned parcel.   The location is optimal for the pending 

reconstruction of Highway 20, is already gravel surfaced, not used for row crop or pasture agriculture, and is a 
reasonable temporary land use for this parcel.  I recommend approval of the temporary conditional use permit. – 
Mark J. Nahra, PE., 5/20/24.

WOODBURY COUNTY RECORDER: No comments. – Diane Swoboda Peterson, 5/6/24.

WOODBURY COUNTY RURAL ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE (REC): None
WOODBURY COUNTY SOIL AND WATER CONSERVATION 
DISTRICT: 

The WCSWCD has no comments regarding this proposal. – Neil Stockfleth, 5/6/24.

115



32 116



33 117



34 

PARCEL REPORT(S)

118



35 119



36

ZONING MAP

894431100010

120



37 

SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREA (SFHA) MAP

121



38 

DRAFT - SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREA (SFHA) MAP – BECOMES EFFECTIVE JULY 17, 2024

122



39

ELEVATION MAP

123



40 

SOIL MAP(S)

124



41 

SOIL REPORT(S)

Not available for Parcel #894431100010

125




